

PR O C U R EMEN T

TERMS AND CONDITIONS(Data Controller to Data Processor)

CONTENTS

1	INTERPRETATION	2
2	THE CONTRACT	3
3	DELIVERY/COMPLETION	5
4	LATE OR INCORRECT DELIVERY	6
5	QUALITY	7
6	PRICE	7
7	METHOD OF ORDERING AND PAYMENT FOR GOODS/SERVICES	7
8.	INVOICES	8
9	OWNERSHIP AND RISK	9
10	ROYALTIES AND PATENT RIGHTS	9
11	USE OF INFORMATION	10
12	DATA PROTECTION	10
13	INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE	13
14	ASSIGNMENT OR SUB-CONTRACTING	14
15	IMPROPER INDUCEMENT OR REWARD	14
16	TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT	14
17	CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION	15
18	WAIVER	16
19	EXCLUSION OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS	16
20	CONTRACT MANAGEMENT	16
21	VARIATIONS	16
22	AGENCY	17
23	SUSTAINABILITY	17
24	BUSINESS CONTINUITY	17
25	FORCE MAJEURE	17
26	SERVICE OF NOTICES	18
27	COUNCIL CONTRACT PROCEDURES	18
28	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	18
29	HEALTH AND SAFETY	18
31	GOVERNING LAW	19

PURCHASE ORDER CONDITIONS

1 INTERPRETATION

1.1 In this Contract unless the context otherwise requires:

'Authorised Officer' means an officer of the council authorised (generally or specifically) to commit the council;

'Commencement Date' means as defined in the Contract.

'Conditions' means the terms and conditions of purchase set out in this document;

'Contract' means the Official Order, any tender documentation, the Supplier's tender response, these Conditions and any Special Conditions of Contract attached to or mentioned in the Official Order:

'council' means The City Council of Norwich of City Hall, St Peter's Street, Norwich, NR2 1NH;

'Goods' mean any goods, articles, materials or things which are the subject of and described in the Contract;

'Goods/Services' means the Goods and or Services which are the subject of the Contract, as the context requires;

'Data Protection Legislation' means the Data Protection Act 1998 as long as it is in force and thereafter the General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation (EC) 2016/679 which comes into force in the UK on 25 May 2018) (GDPR) and any national implementing laws, regulations and secondary legislation, as amended or updated from time to time, in the UK and then any successor legislation to the GDPR or the Data Protection Act 1998:

'Intellectual Property Rights' means patents, rights, copyright and related rights, trade marks, business names and domain names, rights in get-up, goodwill and the right to sue for passing off, rights in designs, database rights, rights to use, and protect the confidentiality of, confidential information (including knowhow), and all other intellectual property rights, in each case whether registered or unregistered;

'Official Order' means the council's purchase order;

'Parties' means the council and the Supplier;

'Price' has the meaning given at Clause 6;

'Services' mean any services or work which are the subject of and described in the Contract;

'Special Conditions' means any special terms and conditions of

- purchase attached to or mentioned in the Official Order;
- 'Supplier' means the person(s), organisation or company to whom the Official Order is addressed.
- 1.2 The headings in this Contract are included for convenience only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of this Contract.
- 1.3 Where Special Conditions apply and are inconsistent with these Conditions the Special Conditions will have precedence.
- 1.4 A reference to a statute or statutory provision is a reference to it as amended or re-enacted. A reference to a statute or statutory provision includes any subordinate legislation made under that statute or statutory provision, as amended or re-enacted.
- 1.5 Any phrase introduced by the terms including, include, in particular or any similar expression shall mean including without limitation and be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words preceding those terms.
- 1.6 A reference to writing or written includes fax and email.
- 1.7 Words in the singular include the plural and vice versa.
- 1.8 Words importing the masculine include the feminine and the neuter.
- 1.9 References to any person shall include natural persons and partnerships, firms and other incorporated bodies and all other legal persons of whatever kind and however constituted and their successors and permitted assignees or transferees.

2 THE CONTRACT

- 2.1 The Supplier agrees to supply the Goods/Services specified in the Contract from the Commencement Date and at the time or times and in the quantities and manner specified in the Contract to the satisfaction of the council.
- 2.2 In consideration of the supply of the Goods/Services by the Supplier, the council agrees to pay the Price for the Goods/Services in the manner and time set out in the Contract.
- 2.3 The Contract constitutes the whole agreement and understanding of the Parties as to the subject matter hereof and there are no prior or contemporaneous agreements between the Parties with respect thereto.
- 2.4 Further to Clause 2.3, these Conditions apply to the Contract to the exclusion of any other terms that the Supplier seeks to impose or incorporate, or which are implied by trade, custom, practice or course of dealing.
- 2.5 If any provision of the Contract is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, such provision will be severed and the remaining provisions will continue in full force and effect.

- In the event of a holding of invalidity so fundamental as to prevent the accomplishment of the purpose of the Contract, the Parties shall immediately commence negotiations in good faith to remedy the invalidity.
- 2.6 The Supplier shall ensure that at all times it has and maintains all the licences, permissions, authorisations, consents and permits that it needs to carry out its obligations under the Contract.
- 2.7 In providing any Services, the Supplier shall:
- (a) co-operate with the council in all matters relating to the Services, and comply with all instructions of the council;
- (b) perform the Services with the best care, skill and diligence in accordance with best practice in the Supplier's industry, profession or trade;
- (c) use personnel who are suitably skilled and experienced to perform tasks assigned to them, and in sufficient number to ensure that the Supplier's obligations are fulfilled in accordance with the Contract;
- (d) ensure that the Services and deliverables will conform with all descriptions and specifications set out in the Contract, and that the Services shall be fit for any purpose expressly or impliedly made known to the Supplier by the council;
- (e) provide all equipment, tools and vehicles and such other items as are required to provide the Services;
- (f) use the best quality Goods, materials, standards and techniques, and ensure that the deliverables, and all Goods and materials supplied and used in the Services or transferred to the council, will be free from defects in workmanship, installation and design;
- (g) comply with all applicable laws, statutes, regulations and codes from time to time in force:
- (h) observe all health and safety rules and regulations and any other security requirements that apply at any of the council's premises:
- not do or omit to do anything which may cause the council to lose any licence, authority, consent or permission on which it relies for the purposes of conducting its business, and the Supplier acknowledges that the council may rely or act on the Services;
- 2.8 The Supplier shall ensure that any Goods purchased shall:
- (a) correspond with their description and any applicable specification;
- (b) be of satisfactory quality (within the meaning of the Sale of Goods Act 1979, as amended) and fit for any purpose held out by the Supplier or made known to the Supplier by the council

- expressly or by implication, and in this respect the council relies on the Supplier's skill and judgement;
- (c) where they are manufactured products, be free from defects in design, material and workmanship and remain so for 12 months after delivery; and
- (d) comply with all applicable statutory and regulatory requirements relating to the manufacture, labelling, packaging, storage, handling and delivery of the Goods.

3 DELIVERY/COMPLETION

- 3.1 The Goods will be properly packed, secured and sent at the Supplier's expense and will be delivered in good condition on the date or dates and at the time or times and the place or places set out in the Contract.
- 3.2 The Supplier shall ensure that each delivery of the Goods is accompanied by a delivery note which shows the date of the Order, the Order number (if any), the type and quantity of the Goods (including the code number of the Goods, where applicable), special storage instructions (if any) and, if the Goods are being delivered by instalments, the outstanding balance of Goods remaining to be delivered.
- 3.3 The Supplier shall ensure that if the Supplier requires the council to return any packaging material to the Supplier, that fact is clearly stated on the delivery note. Any such packaging material shall be returned to the Supplier at the cost of the Supplier.
- 3.4 Delivery of the Goods shall be completed on the completion of unloading the Goods at the specified location.
- 3.5 The council may inspect and test the Goods at any time before delivery. The Supplier shall remain fully responsible for the Goods despite any such inspection or testing and any such inspection or testing shall not reduce or otherwise affect the Supplier's obligations under the Contract.
- 3.6 If following such inspection or testing the council considers that the Goods do not conform or are unlikely to comply with the Supplier's undertakings at Clause 2.7, the council shall inform the Supplier and the Supplier shall immediately take such remedial action as is necessary to ensure compliance.
- 3.7 The council may conduct further inspections and tests after the Supplier has carried out its remedial actions.
- 3.8 The Services will be supplied and completed in accordance with the requirements and time-scales set out in the Contract.
- 3.9 The Supplier shall not deliver the Goods in instalments without the council's prior written consent. Where it is agreed that the Goods are to be delivered by instalments, they may be invoiced

and paid for separately. However, failure by the Supplier to deliver any one instalment on time or at all or any defect in an instalment shall entitle the council to the remedies set out in Clause 4.

back

4 LATE OR INCORRECT DELIVERY

- 4.1 If the Supplier is unable to deliver the Goods or supply the Services (or any part of them) when required by the Contract (or where no time is specified, within a reasonable time), the Supplier will immediately inform the council;
- 4.2 If the Goods are not delivered or the Services are not supplied (or any part of them) by the time or times set out in the Contract (or where no such time is specified, within a reasonable time), or are not delivered in accordance with the Contract then, without limiting any of its other rights or remedies, and whether or not it has accepted the Goods, the council may exercise any one or more of the following remedies:
- (a) to terminate the Contract with immediate effect by giving written notice to the Supplier;
- (b) to reject them (in whole or in part) and where they are Goods, return them to the Supplier at the Supplier's own risk and expense. For the avoidance of doubt, any Goods which are rejected may be removed by the Supplier immediately after receipt of notice of such rejection where they elect to do so and if they are not removed within ten working days after dispatch of such notice the council may cause the Goods to be removed, sold, or otherwise disposed of and charge the Supplier with all expenses incurred in such removal, sale or disposal and the council shall not be liable for any damage or loss thereby sustained by the Supplier and such expenses shall be recoverable by the council from the Supplier;
- (c) to require the Supplier to repair or replace the rejected Goods/Services, or to provide a full refund of the Price of the rejected Goods/Services (if paid);
- (d) to refuse to accept any subsequent delivery of the Goods or performance of the Services which the Supplier attempts to make;
- (e) have the rejected Goods/Services supplied by a reasonable alternative Supplier. The Supplier will be liable for any loss, damage or expense incurred by the council (whether direct or indirect) as a result of any failure to deliver or supply in accordance with the Contract;
- (f) to recover from the Supplier any costs incurred by the council in obtaining substitute Goods or Services from a third party;
- (g) where the council has paid in advance for Goods/Services that have not been provided by the Supplier, to have such sums

- refunded by the Supplier and
- (h) to claim damages for any other or additional costs, loss or expenses incurred by the council which are in any way attributable to the Supplier's failure to carry out its obligations under the Contract.
- 4.3 Should any faults develop within a period of 12 months from the date of delivery of Goods or completion of supply of Services which are in the opinion of the council directly attributable to inferior workmanship or faulty materials the Supplier shall at his/her own expense be required to make good or replace immediately the defective parts or work to the satisfaction of the council.
- 4.4 This Clause 4 will not affect any other rights that the council may have under this Contract or otherwise and these Conditions shall extend to any substituted or remedial Services provided by the Supplier.

5 QUALITY

- 5.1 The Goods/Services will comply with the terms of the Contract.
- 5.2 The Goods/Services will comply with good industry practices.
- 5.3 The Goods/Services will comply with any current legislation and any standard required by applicable European and British Standards specification or code of practice current during the term of the Contract.

back

6 PRICE

- 6.1 The Price of the Goods/Services supplied under the Contract will be the Price given in the Contract, exclusive of any applicable VAT. The Price so entered will be binding on both Parties during the continuance of the Contract and no extra charges shall be effective unless agreed in writing with the council.
- 6.2 For the avoidance of doubt, where the Price is for Goods, it shall include the costs of packaging, insurance and carriage of the Goods.

back

7 METHOD OF ORDERING AND PAYMENT FOR GOODS/SERVICES

- 7.1 The council will not be liable to pay for Goods/Services unless requisitioned by an Official Order that complies with Clause 8.
- 7.2 The council will pay any invoice issued under Clause 8 within 20 days of the date on which the council has determined that the invoice is valid and undisputed or 20 days from delivery of the Goods or completion of the supply of the Services whichever is

Terms & conditions May 2018 v1.0 Page **7** of **20**

later.

- 7.3 Where the council fails to comply with Clause 7.2 and there is an undue delay in considering and verifying the invoice, the invoice shall be regarded as valid and undisputed for the purposes of Clause 7.2 after a reasonable time has passed.
- 7.4 Where the Supplier enters into a sub-contract, the Supplier shall include in that sub-contract:
 - (a) That any payment due from the Supplier to the Subcontractor under the Contract is to be made no later than the end of the period of 30 days of the date from which the invoice is regarded as valid and undisputed or 30 days from delivery of the Goods or completion of the supply of the Services whichever is later.
 - (b) a provision requiring the counterparty to that sub-contract to include in any sub-contract which it awards provisions having the same effect as Clauses 7.4i of this Contract.
 - (c) In Clause 7.4i and 7.4ii, "sub-contract" means a contract between two or more Suppliers, at any stage of remoteness from the ouncil in a subcontracting chain, made wholly or substantially for the purpose of performing (or contributing to the performance of) the whole or any part of this Contract.
- 7.5 The council shall be entitled to set off against the Price (including any applicable Value Added Tax payable) amounts due the Supplier, under this or any other Contract.
- 7.6 Further to Clause 6, the Price is inclusive of all the Supplier's obligations under this Contract.

back

8. INVOICES

- 8.1 Further to Clauses 6 and 7, and in accordance with Clause 3.2, in the case of Goods, the Supplier will send with the Goods an invoice or delivery note quoting the relevant Official Order number and setting out particulars of the Goods delivered. The council will not accept Goods unless they are accompanied by such a prominently displayed invoice or delivery note.
- 8.2 Further to Clauses 6 and 7, for Services the Supplier will send an invoice once the Services have been provided in accordance with the Contract. The invoice will quote the Official Order number and set out details of the Services supplied.
- 8.3 The council will not make payment unless an invoice in the form set out in Clause 8.1 and/or 8.2 above is received. Unless otherwise agreed, the Supplier will submit invoices to the Payment Team at City Hall, St Peter's Street, Norwich NR2 1NH or as otherwise stated on the Official Order or emailed to accountspayable@norwich.gov.uk.

9 OWNERSHIP AND RISK

9.1 Ownership of Goods will pass to the council when they have been delivered or supplied in accordance with the Contract and the Supplier will bear all the risks of loss or damage to the Goods until they have been delivered and will insure accordingly.

back

10 ROYALTIES AND PATENT RIGHTS

- The Supplier will pay all royalties on patented articles, all Value Added Tax, import duty and other taxes.
- 10.2 Further to Clause 10.1, all payments and royalties payable in one sum or by instalments or otherwise are deemed to have been included by the Supplier in the Price, and will be paid by them to those to whom they may be due or payable.
- 10.3 The Supplier warrants that neither the Goods/Services nor use of them will infringe any patent registered design trademark or copyright or other protected right and will fully indemnify the council against any action, claim or demand costs or expenses arising from or incurred by reason of any infringement or alleged infringement of any such right.
- 10.4 In the event of any claim being made or action brought against the council in respect of any of the matters set out at 10.1, 10.2 or 10.3, the council agrees to notify the Supplier immediately and the Supplier will, at their sole expense, conduct all negotiations for the settlement of the same, or any litigation that may arise therefrom.
- 10.5 In respect of any Goods that are transferred to the council under the Contract, or any part of them, the Supplier warrants that it has full clear and unencumbered title to all such items, and that at the date of delivery of such items to the council, it will have full and unrestricted rights to transfer all such items to the council.
- 10.6 The Supplier assigns to the council, with full title guarantee and free from all third party rights, all Intellectual Property Rights in the products of the Services.
- 10.7 The Supplier shall obtain waivers of all moral rights in the products, including the deliverables, of the Services to which any individual is now or may be at any future time entitled under Chapter IV of Part I of the Copyright Designs and Patents Act 1988 or any similar provisions of law in any jurisdiction.
- 10.8 The Supplier shall, promptly at the council's request, do (or procure to be done) all such further acts and things and the execution of all such other documents as the council may from time to time require for the purpose of securing for the council the full benefit of the Contract, including all right, title and interest in and to the Intellectual Property Rights assigned to the

10.9 All council materials are the exclusive property of the council.

back

11 USE OF INFORMATION

- 11.1 Subject to Clause 11.2 and with the exception of information in all cases lawfully;
 - (a) already in the public domain,
 - (b) already in the other party's possession,
 - (c) received from a third party,
 - (d) independently developed or
 - (e) disclosable under a statutory or legal requirement

all matters concerning the Contract will be confidential. Any drawings, specifications, diagrams, computer programmes, tools, materials or any other equipment or information acquired from the council will only be used for the purpose for which they are supplied and will not be divulged, copied or transmitted to third Parties without the prior written consent of the Authorised Officer. Such items remain the property of the council and will be returned in good condition (fair wear and tear excepted) on completion of the Contract.

- 11.2 The Supplier acknowledges that the council is subject to the requirements under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 ('the FOIA') and the Environmental Information Regulations ("EIR") and shall assist and cooperate with the council free of charge to enable the council to comply with these information disclosure requirements.
- 11.3 The Supplier acknowledges that the council may, acting in accordance with the Secretary of State for Constitutional Affairs' Code of Practice on the discharge of public authorities' functions under Part 1 of the FOIA, be obliged to disclose information:
 - (a) without consulting with the Supplier, or
 - (b) following consultation with the Supplier and having taken its views into account.
- 11.4 The Supplier acknowledges that the council is subject to the requirements under the Local Government Transparency Code 2015 regarding disclosure of information relating to contracts.

12 DATA PROTECTION

12.1 Both Parties will comply with all applicable requirements of the Data Protection Legislation. This clause 12 is in addition to, and does not relieve, remove or replace, a Party's obligations under the Data Protection Legislation.

- 12.2 The Parties acknowledge that for the purposes of the Data Protection Legislation, the Council is the Data Controller and the Supplier is the Data Processor (where Data Controller and Data Processor have the meanings as defined in the Data Protection Legislation). Schedule A sets out the scope, nature and purpose of Processing by the Supplier, the duration of the Processing, the types of Personal Data and categories of Data Subject (all as defined in the Data Protection Legislation).
- 12.3 Without prejudice to the generality of clause 12.1, the Council will ensure that it has all necessary appropriate consents and notices in place to enable lawful transfer of the Personal Data to the Supplier for the duration and purposes of this Contract.
- 12.4 Without prejudice to the generality of clause 12.1, the Supplier shall, in relation to any Personal Data processed in connection with the performance by the Supplier of its obligations under this Contract:
 - (a) process that Personal Data only on the written instructions of the Council;
 - ensure that it has in place appropriate technical and (b) organisational measures, to protect against unauthorised or unlawful processing of Personal Data and against accidental loss or destruction of, or damage to, Personal Data, appropriate to the harm that might result from the unauthorised or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or damage and the nature of the data to be protected, having regard to the state of technological development and the cost of implementing any measures measures may include, where appropriate, pseudonymising and encrypting Personal Data, ensuring confidentiality, integrity, availability and resilience of its systems and services, ensuring that availability of and access to Personal Data can be restored in a timely manner after an incident, and regularly assessing and evaluating the effectiveness of the technical and organisational measures adopted by it);
 - (c) ensure that all staff who have access to and/or process Personal Data are obliged to keep the Personal Data confidential; and
 - (d) not transfer any Personal Data outside of the European Economic Area unless the prior written consent of the Council has been obtained and the following conditions are fulfilled:
 - the Council or the Supplier has provided appropriate safeguards in relation to the transfer;
 - the Data Subject has enforceable rights and effective legal remedies;

- the Supplier complies with its obligations under the Data Protection Legislation by providing an adequate level of protection to any Personal Data that is transferred; and
- the Supplier complies with reasonable instructions notified to it in advance by the Council with respect to the processing of the Personal Data;
- (e) assist the Council in responding to any request from a Data Subject and in ensuring compliance with its obligations under the Data Protection Legislation with respect to security, breach notifications, impact assessments and consultations with supervisory authorities or regulators
- (f) notify the Council immediately and proactively on becoming aware of a Personal Data breach or infringement of the Data Protection Legislation or this clause 12. In particular, the Supplier shall:
 - describe the incident, the nature of the breach and the circumstances in clear and plain language;
 - communicate the name and contact details of the Data Protection Officer (as defined in the Data Protection Legislation) or other contact point where more information can be obtained;
 - describe the likely consequences of the Personal Data breach;
 - describe the measures taken or proposed to be taken to address the Personal Data breach, including, where appropriate, measures to mitigate its possible adverse effects:
 - if it is aware that detail described in clauses 12.4 (f) bullets 1 to 4 is or is likely to be known in phases, it shall inform the Council and give a timescale for each stage;
 - not consider the matter reported unless the Supplier receives an acknowledgement from the Council;
 - provide such other information and assistance (including in any containment and investigation), and in such timescales, as the Council may require or direct from time to time.
- (g) at the written direction of the Council, delete or return Personal Data and copies thereof to the Council on termination of the Contract unless required by Applicable

- Law (as defined in the Data Protection Legislation) to store the Personal Data; and
- (h) maintain complete and accurate records and information to demonstrate its compliance with this clause 12 and allow for audits by the Council or the Council's designated auditor. For the avoidance of any doubt, the Supplier shall tell the Council immediately if it is asked to do something infringing Data Protection Legislation or other data protection law of the EU or a member state.
- (i) assist the Council with its obligations as Data Controller as directed from time to time.
- 12.5 The Council does not consent to the Supplier appointing any third party processor of Personal Data under this Contract without its express written consent. In such circumstances, the Supplier confirms that it has entered or (as the case may be) will enter with the third-party processor into a written agreement incorporating terms which are substantially similar to those set out in this clause 12. As between the Council and the Supplier, the Supplier shall remain fully liable for all acts or omissions of any third-party processor appointed by it pursuant to this clause 12.5.
- 12.6 The Supplier may, at any time on not less than 30 days' notice, revise this clause 12 by replacing it with any applicable controller to processor standard clauses or similar terms forming party of an applicable certification scheme (which shall apply when replaced by attachment to this Agreement).
- 12.7 Where the Council is required to put remedial or other actions or safeguards into place as a result of a supervisory authority's or regulator's direction or decision, the Supplier shall assist and cooperate with the Council at no further expense to make any changes, modifications or to take any action as may be directed (including within any timescale provided) from time to time.

13 INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

- 13.1 The Supplier shall indemnify and keep the council indemnified from and against any and all actions, costs (including professional costs), claims, demands, liabilities, losses and expenses (whether direct or indirect, present or future, actual or contingent) incurred by or arising against the council in connection with any of the following:
 - (a) any failure of the Goods/Services to comply with the Contract:
 - (b) any actual or alleged non-compliance of the Goods/Services with any law, regulation, code of practice or regulatory requirement (whether of the United Kingdom or elsewhere) which is applicable to the Goods/Services;
 - (c) any personal injury to or death of any person or any damage to any property (other than as a result of any

- default or neglect of the council or of any person for whom it is responsible) which arises out of the negligent or imperfect or improper performance of the Contract by the Supplier or his/her workmen, servants or agents, or any actual or alleged defect in the Goods/Services supplied:
- (d) any claim against the council by any third party as a result of any breach by the Supplier of the Contract or any obligations implied on the Supplier's part by the Sales of Goods Act 1979, the Supply of Goods and Services Act 1982 or any other statue or statutory provision relevant to the Contract or the Goods/Services supplied under it; and
- (e) any claim brought against the council for actual or alleged infringement of a third party's Intellectual Property Rights arising out of, or in connection with, the receipt, use or supply of the Services, to the extent that the claim is attributable to the acts or omissions of the Supplier, its employees, agents or subcontractors.
- 13.2 During the term of the Contract and for 12 months thereafter the Supplier shall maintain such insurance against all the liabilities, payments, proceedings, costs, charges, damages, expenses, claims, and demands referred to in the Contract or this Clause and will when required produce to the council the policy, or policies of such insurance together with the receipt for the payment of the last premium in respect thereof.

14 ASSIGNMENT OR SUB-CONTRACTING

14.1 The Supplier will not transfer or assign directly or indirectly to any person or persons whatever, the whole or any portion of the Contract without the written permission of the council. The Supplier will be responsible for the observance of all the provisions of the Contract by all sub-contractors and by manufacturers and Suppliers of Goods used in the execution of the Contract.

back

15 IMPROPER INDUCEMENT OR REWARD

15.1 The Supplier or any person employed by the Supplier or acting on the Supplier's behalf whether or not with the Supplier's knowledge, shall not, in connection with this Contract, give, provide or offer to the council's staff or agents or any other person any loan, fee, reward, gift or any emolument or advantage whatsoever as an inducement or reward for taking or not taking any action in relation to the Contract or any other contract with the council.

back

16 TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT

- 16.1 The council may (without prejudice to any other rights or remedies under the Contract including other rights to terminate the Contract) terminate the Contract immediately (by giving written notice) if the Supplier:
 - (a) breaches or fails to observe any provision of this Contract, where the council has given written notice of the breach or non-observance to the Supplier allowing 14 days from receipt of the notice to rectify the breach or non-observance and the breach or non-observance is not rectified (either fully or at all) in that time.
 - (b) becomes insolvent or bankrupt or if an order is made or a resolution is passed for its winding up or if an administrator, administrative receiver or receiver is appointed in respect of the whole or any part of the Supplier's assets or business or if the Supplier makes any composition with its creditors or takes or suffers any similar or analogous action in consequence of debt.
 - (c) suspends, or threatens to suspend, or ceases or threatens to cease to carry on all or a substantial part of its business.
 - (d) causes or commits a breach of Clause 15 of the Conditions or commits an offence under the Bribery Act 2010 or Section 117(2) of the Local Government Act 1972 in relation to any contract with the council.
 - (e) the Supplier has committed a fundamental breach of the Contract which in the council's reasonable opinion justifies immediate termination of the Contract.
- Any termination under Clause 15.1 or any other Clause of the Contract will be without prejudice to the rights of the council in respect of any prior breach by the Supplier of the Contract.

17 CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION

- 17.1 Where breach leads to early termination or suspension of the Contract the council will be entitled to employ and pay other persons to provide and complete the provisions of the Contract and to recover any monies paid in doing so from the Supplier.
- 17.2 Where following expiry or earlier determination of the Contract, provision of the supply of Goods/Services is to transfer to another Supplier, the Supplier will assist the council in all respects with such transfer including, but not limited to, providing the Council with any information required to enable the Council to comply with its obligations under the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 on request.
- 17.3 Within 6 weeks of the expiry or earlier determination of the Contract the Supplier will repay to the Council any amount paid that has not been spent as at the date of expiry or termination of the Contract in supplying the Goods/Services.
- 17.4 On termination of the Contract for any reason, the Supplier shall immediately deliver to the council all deliverables whether or not

Terms & conditions May 2018 v1.0 Page **15** of **20**

then complete, and return all council materials. If the Supplier fails to do so, then the council may enter the Supplier's premises and take possession of them. Until they have been returned or delivered, the Supplier shall be solely responsible for their safe keeping and will not use them for any purpose not connected with the Contract.

back

18 WAIVER

18.1 Failure by either Party to enforce at any time or for any period any one or more of the provisions of this Contract will not constitute or be construed as a waiver of the provision or of the right at any time subsequently to enforce all terms and conditions of this Contract nor affect the validity of the Contract or any part of it or the right of the Parties to enforce any provision in accordance with its terms.

back

19 EXCLUSION OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

19.1 No third parties will acquire any rights under this Contract and the provisions of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act are expressly excluded.

back

20 CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

- 20.1 The council will appoint an Authorised Officer.
- 20.2 The Authorised Officer will have power to issue instructions to the Supplier on any matter relating to the Contract and the Supplier will comply therewith.
- 20.3 From time to time the Authorised Officer may appoint one or more representatives to act for the Authorised Officer generally or for specified purposes or periods. Should any such appointment be made, the Authorised Officer will give the Supplier written notice.
- 20.4 The Supplier will allow the council's Chief Finance Officer and their auditor, or their nominated representative, access to such of their records as they may reasonably require for audit purposes.

back

21 VARIATIONS

21.1 The Authorised Officer may, at any time, by written notice, request the Supplier to make any reasonable alteration to the Contract or any Official Order pursuant thereto (a 'Variation'). In the event of a Variation being required, the council will instruct the Supplier to state in writing their ability to meet the requirements of the Variation and the effect the Variation will have on the cost of the Contract. The Supplier will respond within fourteen (14) days

Terms & conditions May 2018 v1.0 Page **16** of **20**

- from receipt of the relevant Authorised Officer's instructions or such other period as may be agreed.
- 21.2 The Contract may be amended by agreement between the Parties but no amendment to the Contract will be binding unless it is recorded in writing and signed by a duly authorised representative of each Party.

22 AGENCY

- 22.1 The Supplier must not in any circumstance hold themselves out as being the partner, servant or agent of the Council otherwise than in circumstances permitted by the Contract.
- 22.2 The Supplier must not in any circumstances hold themselves out as being authorised to enter into any contract on behalf of the Council or in any other way to bind the Council to the performance, variation, release or discharge of any obligation otherwise than in circumstances permitted by the Contract.
- 22.3 The Supplier will not in any circumstances hold themselves out as having the power to make, vary, discharge or waive any Bylaw or Regulation of any kind.

back

23 SUSTAINABILITY

23.1 In the performance of the Contract the Supplier will take into account the Council's responsibilities to minimise any adverse environmental impact generated by its direct or indirect activity, including sustainability, equality, diversity and other social implications.

back

24 BUSINESS CONTINUITY

24.1 The Supplier will maintain in place throughout the Contract business continuity arrangements and will review those arrangements at appropriate intervals and if necessary update them, so as to ensure as far as reasonably practical that in the event of unexpected circumstances, either within or external to the Supplier's organisation, delivery of the Goods/Services to the council is subject to a minimum of disruption.

back

25 FORCE MAJEURE

25.1 If either Party is prevented from fulfilling its obligations under the Contract by reason of any supervening event beyond its control including (but not limited to) war, national emergency, flood, earthquake, strike or lockout (other than a strike or lockout induced by the Party so affected) the Party unable to fulfil its obligations shall immediately give notice of this to the Other Party and shall do everything in its power to resume performance.

- 25.2 Neither Party shall be deemed to be in breach of its obligations under the Contract in the circumstances set out in Clause 25.1 subject to the terms set out in that Clause.
- 25.3 If and when the period of such incapacity exceeds two weeks, then the Contract shall automatically terminate unless the Parties first agree otherwise in writing.

26 SERVICE OF NOTICES

- Any notice or other communication given to a party under or in connection with the Contract shall be in writing, addressed to that party at its registered office or such other address as that party may have specified to the other party in writing in accordance with this Clause, and shall be delivered personally, or sent by pre-paid first class post or other next working day delivery service, commercial courier, fax or email.
- 26.2 Any notice served shall be deemed to be sufficiently served if given or left in writing at the relevant Parties' usual or last place of abode or business if sent by pre-paid first class post or other next working day delivery service, at 9.00 am on the second business day after posting; if delivered by commercial courier, on the date and at the time that the courier's delivery receipt is signed; or, if sent by fax or email, one Business Day after transmission.

back

27 COUNCIL CONTRACT PROCEDURES

27.1 The Contract will be deemed to embrace all relevant terms and conditions stated in the council's Contract Procedures, and Financial Regulations. Copies of these documents may be inspected by the Supplier at the council offices on request.

back

28 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

28.1 If any dispute or difference whatsoever shall arise between the Parties in connection with or arising out of the Contract either party may give the other 7 days' notice to resolve the dispute or difference through Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) in accordance with the mediation procedure of the Centre for Dispute Resolution. If the Parties fail to agree terms of settlement of their dispute or difference within 56 days of the receipt of such notice or the party to whom the notice is given refuses to participate in the ADR procedure, then the matter may be referred to the Courts of England.

back

29 HEALTH AND SAFETY

29.1 The Supplier shall comply with all requirements of the Health

and Safety at Work Act 1974 and any regulation or order made under it and any statutory amendment to it and any legal requirements of the European Union and international agreements applicable to the Goods and/or Services.

back

31 GOVERNING LAW

9.1 This Contract shall be governed by the Law of England and subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English Courts.

back

SCHEDULE A – SCHEDULE OF PROCESSING, DATA AND DATA SUBJECTS

Description	Details
Subject matter of the processing	[This should be a high level, short description of what the
	processing is about i.e. its subject matter] [Clearly set out the duration of the processing
Duration of the processing	including
	dates]
Nature and purposes of the processing	[Please be as specific as possible, but make sure that you cover all intended purposes. The nature of the processing means any
	operation such as collection, recording, organisation, structuring, storage,
	adaptation or alteration, retrieval, consultation, use,
	disclosure by transmission, dissemination or otherwise
	making available, alignment or combination, restriction,
	erasure or destruction of data (whether or not by automated
	means) etc. The purpose might include: employment processing,
	statutory obligation, recruitment assessment etc]
Type of Personal Data	[Examples here include: name, address, date of birth, NI
	number, telephone number, pay, images, biometric data etc]
Categories of Data Subject	[Examples include: Staff (including volunteers, agents, and temporary workers), customers/ clients, suppliers, patients,
	students / pupils, members of the public, users of a particular
	website etc]
Plan for return and destruction of the	[Describe how long the data will be retained for, how it be
data once the processing is complete UNLESS requirement under union or	returned or destroyed]
member state law to preserve that type of data	